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The Harrods Creek Church, built ca.1810, is located one-eighth mile north of Brownsboro
on a knoll overlooking a pond. The Reverend William Kellar house, constructed in 1807,
is situated one-fourth mile west of the church. The house, which is surrounded by acres
of rolling farmland, overlooks a small basin created by a spring which originates several
hundred yards north of the structure.

The church is a simple stone structure facing north with three long narrow pointed
windows on the east and west sides (see photo 2). A small vestibule projects forward
from the nave.Double doors are centered below a fanlightof Gothic pointed form with
switchline tracery at the front entrance. A small bullseye window is located above the
vestibule in the gable of the nave (see photo 1). A one-story vestry extends off the
south end of the church. The entire church was stuccoed sometime in the early 1900s.

It seems probable that the vestibule and Gothic arches of the windows were not original.

The interior of the church is now bare, the pews having been removed a few years ago.
In some areas the plaster has fallen off, exposing the stones and the original mortar.

The church was vacated by the congregation in 1966 when a new brick structure was built
adjacent to the original church. Since this time, the old church has been used for
recreati®nal purposes. Its fate is uncertain at this time.

West of the church is an old road, still in evidence, which extended to the William
Kellar house. The Kellar house, which faces north, is a three-bay, two-story stone
structure with a brick ell extending off the west end of the south wall (see photo 5).
The stone is roughly shaped and laid in irregular courses. Located half-way up the
west wall at the northwest corner is a large rectangular stone with William Kellar's
initials and the date 1807 inscribed on it (see photo 6).

The front entrance is centered in the north facade. Wide stone steps originally led up
to the front entrance but have been pulled away. The windows are long and narrow and
have large keystones over the first-floor openings (see photo 7). All the window
casings are edged with brick. The windows were probably lengthened downward in the

late 1800s, and shallow segmented brick arches inserted below the original frames in
support. Also at this time, the entire stone section was stuccoed. Centered on the
rear or south wall of the house is a door located opposite the front entrance. Situated
directly above this entrance is another door which could have led out to a porch or a
stairway (see photo 8). Adjacent to the rear entrance on the left is a third door which
opens into the dining room. The brick ell, which was probably the kitchen wing, is

laid in Flemish bond on the west side and common bond on the other three sides (see
photo 5).

The house is built on the two-room hall-and-parlor plan. The front entrance opened into
the parlor on the east side of the house, while the dining room was on the west.

A small fireplace with a keystone arch is located in the basement. Fireplaces are also

located in the other rooms, although the first floor openings have been bricked in.
There is a large brick fireplace with a segmental arch in the kitchen ell.

(continued)
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The Harrods Creek Church, located north of the tiny community of Brownsboro, and the
William Kellar house, located one-half mile west of the church, are two of the
earliest stone structures remaining in the area. The church, built ca. 1810, was
organized in 1797, and was the first church established in Oldham County. The
congregation was united under the Reverend William Kellar, who lived within half

a mile of the church. Kellar also established and ministered to two other Baptist
congregations that were within a ten-mile radius of his house.

It is believed that the first settlement in Oldham County took place in this area
around 1788. The county is located just east of Jefferson County and Louisville, but
has until recently remained essentially rural. The settlers, who were of ‘German origin,
formed the small community of Brownsboro, above the South Fork of Harrods Creek, about
eight miles south of the Ohio River. Among the first settlers was William Kellar, who
preached to the people in his own house.

In 1797 Kellar organized the congregation and the group was constituted as the Regular
‘Baptist Church on Harrods Creek. The Reverend Mr. Kellar was selected as the first
pastor. The same year the church entered the Salem Association of Regular Baptists.
As a result of the Great Revival, 1801-1802, the Salem Association increased by 34
churches. 1In 1803 all the churches north of the Salt River were dismissed to form the
Long Run Association.

The Long Run Association of Regular Baptists was constituted on the Philadelphia
Confession of Faith. This confession of faith was Calvinistic in doctrine and advocated
"laying on of hands upon Baptized believers and singing of Psalms in the worship of God."
According to Fisher in his article in The Filson Club History Quarterly (1937), the

Long Run Association of Baptists has grown to be one of the world's most important
associations of Baptists,being one of the "Big Five:" Richmond Virginia; Atlanta,
Georgia; Birmingham Alabama; Long Run, Louisville, Kentucky; London, England. (See

the Long Run Baptist Church, Jefferson County, listed on the National Register August 6,
1975.)

William Kellar, the first pastor of the church, was born in Shenandoah County, Virginia,
in 1768. He was the son of Abraham Kellar, a prosperous farmer. William, the youngest
of eight children, received little education, and from all accounts was a wild and
obstreperous youth. Upon his death, Abram Kellar left William a large Bible saying,

"My son, this is your portion" (Spencer, p.349). He also left him the family's

farm.

(continued)
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The house has been vacant for a number of years and is deteriorating rapidly. It is
now roofless and a section of the first floor has collapsed into the basement. Despite
its poor condition, the walls remain structurally sound.

Situated several hundred yards north of the house, in a basin, is a spring. Along
this creek, Kellar built a water mill and distillery (see 1879 map). Unfortunately,
today no evidence of these structures remain, although archaeological investigation
has not yet been undertaken.
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After the death of his father, William Kellar continued in his wonted ways until he was
converted by the preachings of James Ireland. During this time, he married the daughter
of Colonel John Netherton, a native of Virginia, and moved to East Tennessee, His
religious convictions were confirmed, and he was baptized under the Reverend John Mulky.
A short time later, around 1788, he and his family moved to Kentucky and settled on
Harrods Creek near the present site of Brownsboro. Here he built a log house. 1In

the new settlement there were an equal number of Methodists and Baptists, but no
ministers, The two denominations,agreeing to worship together, conducted meetings at
night in different houses. At these gatherings Kellar, a carpenter and cabinet-maker
by trade,began to exhort and was eventually acknowledged as the leader and teacher.

In 1797 the group was formally constituted as a Baptist congregation and Kellar
continued to preach., Several years later he was ordained to the ministry.

Soon after the Harrods Creek Church was constituted, Kellar heard of a new settlement
about eighteen miles east of Brownsboro and went there to administer to their needs.
He continued to visit weekly,and in 1800 the group was constituted as the Eighteen
Mile Church, the name referring to the distance from the Harrods Creek Church to the
new congregation. In 1802 he organized a church two miles south of Eighteen Mile
Church known as Lick Branch (now called La Grange). Kellar served the three churches
monthly without accepting pay.

Around 1807 Kellar's log house burned to the ground. In its place he built the impres-
sive two-story stone house that still exists, albeit in deteriorated condition. On
the creek which ran through his farm to the west, Kellar built a small water mill and
distillery, which supplied him with his major source of income. According to the 1876
Atlas of Jefferson and Oldham Counties, the distillery was still located there at that
time.

When the War of 1812 broke out, Kellar joined the army and was captain of 100 men in
the Illinois campaign against the Indians. In 1817 he was severely wounded in the leg
by a bear. He died three weeks later from an illness that resulted from the wound.

The prominent Baptist minister John Taylor describes Kellar in his Thoughts on Missions
(1819): "Everything that is calculated to recommend a man to his fellow-man was

summed up in Mr. Kellar. Generosity, goodwill, and liberality, as well as justice and
truth, were predominant in him. Resignation to God ornamented him" (p. 60). Spencer,
in the History of Kentucky Baptists (1885), goes on to say, "Few men have been better
fitted for pioneer preachers than William Kellar. He possessed great physical strength
and courage and unflagged industry. And it added much to his popularity, that he was

a skillful hunter, a boss mechanic-cabinet maker, and the best hand in the settlement
at log-rolling or house raising'

(continued)
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At the time of William Kellar's death there were 279 members of the church. The
second pastor of Harrod's Creek Baptist Church was Benjamin Allen. Allen, a native
of Virginia, was born in 1776. He came to Kentucky with his family in 1785 and at
the age of twelve was apprenticed to Kellar to learn the trade of a carpenter and
cabinet-maker. While working with William Kellar, Allen was converted and baptized
into the Harrods Creek church. He eventually began to exhort and preach, becoming
a fine speaker. Allen became the pastor of two Baptist churches in Jefferson
County and at the time of Kellar's death in 1877, was selected to become the new
pastor of Harrod's Creek. In 1831 when the former protestant minister, Alexander
Campbell, came to Kentucky to spread his beliefs, Benjamin Allen was converted and
began preaching Campbell's creed. A large number of the congregation followed Allen
and formed a new church.

The other half of the congregation, who retained their traditional beliefs, continued
to worship at Harrods Creek.

This split over Campbellism marked the last division that took place in the church.

In 1966 a new church structure was built adjacent to the original one. Since this
time the church has been used for meetings and recreational purposes on Saturday.

(continued)
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